
Date Published:23 March 2022     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Thursday 31 March 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting on 17 November 2021 and 19 
January 2022.

Chair

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update on the GEGJC meeting held earlier this 
month from the Chair, Cllr Tony Dale.

Please refer to the published forward plan of the GEGJC to suggest any
items you may want to consider at a future meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee.

Scrutiny members are invited to attend the GEGJC meeting in an 
observer
capacity. Please refer to the following link to view the agenda and
supporting documents for the GEGJC meeting:

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&
MId=10736&Ver=4

Cllr Tony Dale

5  ECONOMIC IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE (Pages 15 - 22)

To consider the attached background report as an introduction to this 

Lisa McCance, 
Rachel Brain,
Julian Atkins,

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10736&Ver=4
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=10736&Ver=4


    

item, followed by a presentation. Simon Pickering

6  YOUTH UNEMPLOYMENT (Pages 23 - 40)

To receive a joint presentation from the GFirst LEP and GCC on this 
issue.

Pete Carr,
Sarah Poultney,
Vikki Walters

7  WORK PLAN (Pages 41 - 42)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration 
at future meetings.

All

INFORMATION ITEMS

8  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT (Pages 43 - 58)

To note the attached update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director 
of Economy, Environment & Infrastructure.

This report is to be taken as read. If members of the Committee have 
any questions, these should be emailed to Sophie Benfield in Democratic 
Services who will liaise with officers to provide a written response.

Colin Chick

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

Additional: Tuesday 24 May [Item on transport decarbonisation at 
Environment Scrutiny]
31 May 2022
21 July 2022
22 September 2022
29 November 2022

All

Membership –  Cllr Rebecca Halifax, Cllr Dominic Morris, Cllr Robert Vines, Cllr Roger Whyborn, 
Cllr Matt Babbage (Chair), Cllr Sajid Patel, Cllr Chloe Turner, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Alastair Chambers, Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr John Murphy and Cllr Gina 
Blomefield

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
(Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the 
start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(d) 

2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 
the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 17 November 2021 at the Council Chamber, Gloucester City Council.

PRESENT:
Cllr Roger Whyborn
Cllr Matt Babbage (Chair)
Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield

Cllr Alastair Chambers
Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Paul Baker
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller

Substitutes: Cllrs Paula Dee, Mark Mackenzie-Charrington and Dr Andrew Miller

Officers in attendance: Mike Dawson, David Owen, Pete Carr, Sophie Benfield, Simon 
Excell, Colin Chick and Angela Presdee, Mike Craggs, Dave 
Sheridan, Ken Mercer, Andrew Darke and Mark Power.

Apologies: Steve Mawson, Cllr Rebecca Halifax and Cllr Paul McCloskey

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were received.

6. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2021 were approved.

The Chair took this opportunity to formally welcome the Vice-Chair of this 
Committee, Cllr Paul Baker, who was appointed via Gloucestershire County 
Council’s full council meeting.

7. MODERN METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION (MMC) 

7.1 Mike Dawson, CEO of Tewkesbury Borough Council and Chair of the 
Senior Officer Group, introduced the item and explained that this was the 
second of three sessions looking at Modern Methods of Construction 
(MMC). Members were reminded of the previous session (January 2021) 
which looked at the use of MMC for social housing, and the final session 
would be a discussion with private developers. Following the conclusion of 
all three sessions, there would be a summary report produced for the 
Chair to present to GEGJC.

7.2 The first presenter was an introduction from Michael Craggs, 
Development & Asset Management Innovation Lead at Bromford, and 
members noted the following points:

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

 The mind-set change and journey surrounding a move to using MMC 
as an alternative to traditional build continued. Bromford had 
experienced hesitation around securing money (funding and 
mortgages e.g.) and obtaining energy certificates etc. for these builds.

 Slide 3 explained the available categories of MCC, Bromford mainly 
used categories 1 and 2 which came ready made in a number of 
section, delivered onto site and constructed.

 The sector update on slide 4 highlighted the funding partnership with 
Homes England to commit around £5.2b to the social housing sector 
(£239m funding to Bromford) between 2021-26, incorporating a 
percentage use of MMC. Additional funding had been requested to 
help integrate the use of MMC into its building portfolio.

 Bromford had a big focus on reducing their impact on carbon 
emissions. Challenges remained on how PLC’s would deliver changes 
made at a nation level, such as, the no gas approach from 2025 and 
EPC improvements by 2030.

 There needed to be a partnership approach in this sector to enable 
PLCs to deliver carbon neutral housing in the county (local authorities, 
land owners etc.), as well as bringing the use of MMC into the sector. 
Bromford had a target to be net zero by 2030.

7.3 The second presenter was Dave Sheridan, CEO of Ilke Homes, members 
noted the following points:

 Slide 9 outlined a brief context of Ilke Homes
 They stated that they could not deliver on housing needs without the 

use of new building methods. Therefore, they had brought new 
employees from different industries, creating 500 new engineering 
jobs. This was expected to increase by three times in two years.

 Ilke Homes, within Slide 10 explained that they wanted to ensure they 
created a home that was future proof. This slide showcased a 
Category 1 metric house. Their aim was to make houses where people 
wanted to live, not where they had to live. To date they had delivered 
650 homes using this new method.

 Slide 11 listed the advantages of MMC which included;
o Quality Time and Cost
o Productivity
o Delivery at pace
o UK industry
o Political landscape
o Skills Shortage
o Future homes as standard

 Slide 12 outlined the benefits of volumetric, which included;
o Carbon footprint
o Local environment
o Energy

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

o Waste
 Slide 14 outlined an MMC case study in Drybrook, Gloucester. Here 

they had built 51 houses and 6 flats. This included 2 bed, 3 bed and 4 
bed homes.

7.4 The third presenter was Ken Mercer, National Sales Manager at Beattie 
Passive, members noted the following points:

 Slide 19 provided context of the company and its history in delivering 
‘Passivehaus’.

 Slide 20-21 outlined the benefits of the Passivehaus approach.
 Slide 22 outlined an example of their work, with Cardiff Council to build 

homes to help with homelessness, which was completed within a 50-
week turnaround. It was explained that in 6-8 years, the apartments built 
in Cardiff could be repurposed into bungalows, flats, houses and 
reconfigured to the need.

 The company was factory based, in Nottingham but they stated they 
were looking to expand this across the country. The houses were built 
within factory conditions and then delivered to site. 

 These homes had an end life of 200 years, at which point all the timber 
and insulation could be reused.

7.5 The final presenters were Andrew Dark and Mark Power, Directors at Forest 
Homes Collaborative. Members noted the following:

 It was explained that the Forest Homes collaboration was a flexible, 
sustainable and buildable set-up, consisting of a modular system which 
generated more energy than it uses.

 Side 28 outlined the flexibility of the system to make different 
configurations, for a family, single person or couple made from the same 
set of homes/panels to make different types of dwelling.

 Slide 29-30 explained that the flexibility applied to layout and 
appearance. The appearance could be changed to the context of the 
immediate landscape. This therefore better reflected local character and 
specific conditions. Additionally, the construction sourced local materials 
and skills as well as focussing on local offsite manufacturing. 

 Slide 31, showcased a prototype (made in Summer 2021), constructed 
from timber which naturally sequestered carbon. There was an aim to 
get the timber from sustainable and local sites where possible. The 
prototype was developed and transported by truck to location. 10 panels 
took less than 3 hours to raise, this made a single 5m2 room. The target 
was to build a house in a week from the base. This was a low-tech 
approach, but it was designed to use local workshops and skills to 
reduce transportation distances, which in turn created local jobs and 
employment.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

 Slide 32 outlined a pilot project of a 3-bedroom house with a workshop. 
Here the intention was to prove the energy model in collaboration with 
the University of Bath

 In summary, Forest Homes provided a flexible, sustainable and buildable 
housing solution with a new aesthetic to meet the climate challenge, 
building innovative homes with local character for a sustainable future.

Questions

7.6 It was queried, noting the huge number of positives for using MMC, why it 
was not more widely used already. Members noted that there was not a 
direct drive to bring anything else into the marketplace, there was little 
confidence in anything apart from traditional build, even from Homes 
England. This lack of confidence also impacted warranty providers who were 
reluctant to get involved in an unknown quantity, manufacturers, home 
buyers who were not used to having an alternative option, mortgage 
providers and large-scale housing developers. It remained, unfortunately, 
that housing providers could make more profit from using traditional build.

7.7 It had however begun to take a turn, start-ups in the MMC arena had worked 
very hard to drive this product, to reassure and pacify those who had little 
confidence in making the change. The journey for MMC had been similar to 
the motorcar 25 years ago, it had taken early manufacturers to drive the 
change. The biggest challenge remained of convincing large scale housing 
developers to opt for this style of build, and also to use the benefits to make 
a real difference in the delivery and standard of social housing. 

7.8 A member asked if MMC developers were at a disadvantage when it came to 
bidding for land. It was explained that land value was land value, the 
competition was traditional housing developers and having to compete 
against a very well-established way of doing things. There was a noticeable 
dilemma however in that the cost of units was divided into the land value. 
The delivery of housing was then measured against meeting standard 
building regulations, the standard of MMC was much higher than this but 
regardless of what money was spent on building the property to this higher 
standard, the land cost the same and no higher rent could be charged. This 
was a problem for the future due to the need to build homes at a higher EPC 
rate, for example. There needed to be a better focus on the sustainability 
driver of using MMC and looking at how to reduce the land costs in line with 
being able to deliver these higher standards.

7.9 It was heard that MMC’s worked very well with air source heat pumps, and 
developers were always exploring the options of new technologies coming to 
the market, for example, the sunlamp system. MMC also had much better 
insulation than traditional builds anyway, so technologies such as the heat 
pumps would be more used for heating water.

7.10 Looking forward to the future of housing standards, it was questioned 
whether MMC designs could be adapted to deal with, for example, the new 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

age of Covid with increased ventilation etc. It was advised that MMC was 
very adaptable, everything in the design could be changed or moved around 
at the point of design, that was one of its biggest advantages. 

7.11 Noting the ecological emergency, it was queried what MMC were doing to 
build with nature rather than against it. It was advised that adaptability of 
MMC design was key here. It was no longer necessarily just about visual 
green space, but also about things such as animal boxes, water saving 
devices etc. things that could be built into an MMC design as standard. 
Building in urban areas needed to better incorporate the natural landscape, 
and MMC could provide new innovative designs like this.

7.12 A member raised that the case example of an MMC project in Drybrook had 
caused some traffic issues at the time. It was explained that Gloucestershire 
had a requirement of an escorted police order for deliveries of its size, whilst 
not many other local authority areas did. It was appreciated that this caused 
disruption for residents, but the disruption was limited to two days, rather 
than potentially years that can be seen with major traditional housing 
developments. It was stressed that the type of MMC used at Drybrook may 
not be the right answer for every site, but the message from today was about 
giving consumers a choice.

7.13 The Chair confirmed that there was one more sessions as part of their 
investigation into MMC which was with private developers. The aim after that 
session would be to produce a report which outlined their findings, and any 
recommended further work for the GEGJC to consider.

8. GIIF PROGRAMME AND EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

8.1 Due to the overrunning of the previous item, the Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure Investment Fund presentation and report was postponed until 
January’s meeting.

8.2 Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills for GFirst LEP, presented the 
second item. Members noted the following points:

 Slide 1 outlined the skills landscape and emerging policy changes which 
focussed on the following categories:

o DfE skills for Jobs White Paper
o Qualifications
o Climate Change
o Employer Investment
o Collaboration sub-regional & Regional Working
o Possible implications for Gloucestershire
o Autumn 2021 Budget
o New Ministers

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

 Slide 2 outlined the Central Skills Portal which provided a platform for 
residents who were made redundant or furloughed to explore upskilling or 
reskilling, looking for jobs and providing careers advice. The Employment 
and Skills Hub (run by the GFirst LEP & GCC) would provide skills for 
those furthest from the labour market.

 It was noted that 39% of employers nationally did not offer training for 
staff, which really emphasised that without external funding and support, 
some businesses would not invest in their staff development. The one 
benefit for employees of the changing economic landscape may be that 
employers, who cannot afford to pay their staff a higher wage, may 
decide to invest in training to retain and attract employees.

 There was a pilot at the moment where 10 employers were working with 
students in Gloucestershire to look at opportunities for work placements 
and explore how best to support their staff in terms of development. The 
challenge with something like this was scale, in Gloucestershire 80% of 
business were SMEs and may not have the spare finance to invest in 
skills.

 Slide 3 outlined the GFirst Careers Hub which included 50 schools and 1 
college. They had worked with schools and colleges alongside the 
Gatsby Benchmarks to ensure standards were suitable.

8.3 It was questioned whether every secondary school in Gloucestershire was 
involved in the work of the Careers Hub, and whether it possible to see how 
different schools were performing as a result of their involvement. Members 
noted that this was an optional scheme and tried to encourage as many 
schools as possible to sign up, not all had unfortunately. The support 
enabled those schools involved to see whether they met the requirements in 
what they were offering to their students, and if not, what they could do to 
improve. 

ACTION: To provide more information on the Careers Hub, the schools that are 
involved and data – Pete Carr

9. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

The Chair invited Cllr Philip Robinson, Vice-Chair of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), to give the Committee an update 
on the morning’s meeting. Members noted the following points:

 There was an update presentation on the Employment and Skills agenda, 
similar to that received at today’s scrutiny meeting.

 The Committee were updated on GCC’s Covid-19 Economic Recovery Plan. 
All the bids submitted to the Levelling Up Fund were successful, and 
thisequalled £52.8m worth of investment for Gloucestershire. This success 
would also help towards Gloucestershire’s fusion bid as it continued the 
levelling up theme.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

 The Employment and Skills Hub was now live.
 GCC had approved 45 Build Back Better bids from Councillors which had 

resulted in £385,000 of investment so far.
 Funded by Arts Council England and FoDDC, the Forest Economic 

Partnership were currently leading an exercise to understand public opinion 
on a Forest of Dean Biosphere Reserve.

 There was an annual update on Strategic Planning in Gloucestershire, 
particularly M5 J10 where further developments had come to a standstill as 
waiting for planning white paper. 

 Several of the projects funded through the Government’s Getting Building 
Fund [£11.3m] had reached or were reaching completion.

 The LEP were working with GCC to consider launching a ‘Made in 
Gloucestershire’ initiative which would enable businesses and traders to 
certify that they were providing locally sourced products.

 There had been no update on the planned Government’s LEP review.
 The estimated gains from the Business Rate Pool were £4.027m for 

2021/22, which was slightly reduced from the period before.

On the issue of HGV driver shortages, it was acknowledged that the closure of the 
test centre in Gloucester had not helped and contact had been made with the DVLA 
to consider reinstating a test centre in the county. There was also recent news that 
a private training arm of Gloucestershire college had been successful in its bid to 
provide a 15-day training course of HGV qualifications. A member urged that GCC 
needed to take more of a pressured stance on this issue. It was agreed that the 
officer would look into this further.

ACTION: Pete Carr

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 16:10

Page 7

https://en.unesco.org/biosphere


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
on Wednesday 19 January 2022 virtually.

PRESENT:
Cllr Rebecca Halifax
Cllr Dominic Morris
Cllr Roger Whyborn
Cllr Matt Babbage (Chair)
Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey

Cllr Gina Blomefield
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr Alastair Chambers
Cllr Chloe Turner
Cllr Paul Baker

Substitutes: Cllr Dr Andrew Miller
Cllr Sandra Ford

Officers in attendance: Neil Hopwood, Mike Dawson, David Owen, Simon Excell and 
Colin Chick.

Apologies: Cllr John Murphy, Cllr Robert Vines and Pete Carr

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest.

3. GLOUCESTERSHIRE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT FUND PROGRAMME 
(GIIF) 

3.1 The Chair welcomed Neil Hopwood, Projects and Infrastructure Manager for 
GFirst LEP, to present this item. Members noted the following points:

 Originally the GIIF Programme was a grant fund (Growing Places Fund) 
which was awarded in 2012 and allowed local authorities/LEP to be 
flexible in how they used the funding. In Gloucestershire it was used as 
revolving loan fund to provide gap funding for commercially viable 
projects that needed start up support. 

 Typically, once the funding had created an asset, the project would 
generally then be refinanced, which would then repay the GIIF loan and 
GFirst would then recirculate the money. The use of this loan had been 
very successful in creating infrastructure and assets that were struggling 
to get off the ground.

 Each project had to be commercially viable, but one of the great 
advantages of the fund was being able to take a slightly longer-term view 
and look at schemes that might not have been as commercially viable at 
that point in time.

 Slide 2 gave an overview of all the projects that had been supported to 
date. The Honeybourne Gate Extra Care Home and Park View Extra 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Care Home were both regarded as ‘gateway sites’ that had struggled to 
get funding. Both of these sites were now fully operational and regarded 
as having high value facilities. By GFirst investing £2.75m of GIIF 
funding upfront, this drew in £13.4m private sector investment.

 Another notable project was the Gloucester M5 Services (Southbound) 
with initial GIIF investment of £3m, which drew in £20.34m in private 
sector investment.

3.2 A member asked if there were projects in the pipeline when the repayments 
are made in the third quarter. It was noted that there was a major repayment 
due this quarter and the funds were fully committed to the second phase of 
Bakers Quay. Following this, there was availability for new projects and the 
LEP would be looking to promote these available funds in the next few 
months.

3.3 Following a question, it was explained that the GIIF was currently the only 
grant funding available. The Getting Building Fund had now been fully 
committed to projects. It was stated that they were awaiting the Levelling Up 
White Paper which was expected to be published in the following weeks for 
clarity on future investment funds.

3.4 Looking at the type of projects the loans could fund, it was queried whether a 
working group in Gloucester that were looking into creating a sculpture on 
Robinswood Hill, could apply for the funding. It was advised that 
unfortunately, as the loan needed to be repaid, this would not be suitable for 
a community project such as this. Gloucester City had been nominated as a 
‘priority place’ by the Arts Council, so the working group could look to apply 
for a grant capital fund from the Arts Council, which would not need to be 
repaid.

3.5 It was queried how local authorities were consulted in the decision process. 
It was explained that the LEP would not fund schemes that hadn’t been 
granted planning permission, and therefore would have gone through the 
normal local authorities procedure, which offered an opportunity for councils 
to influence the process and whether the scheme went ahead or not. It was 
then the role of the Investment Panel to make the decision on which projects 
were successful for funding. An action was taken to provide data on how 
many loan applications were received and how many were refused.

ACTION: David Owen/Neil Hopwood

3.6 A member questioned whether it was suitable for public money to be loaned, 
interest free, to the private sector. It was confirmed that each project had to 
demonstrate, through the due diligence process, that this was a ‘loan of last 
resort’ and prove they had explored all other avenues for funding. There was 
also a fee that covered due diligence and admin costs of the process.

3.7 On questioning, it was explained that generally, loans of less than £1m 
would not be granted, as it had been decided by the Investment Panel that it 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

would cost too much for applicants in terms of legal fees involved than it 
would through other means for smaller loans. It would also be a considerable 
undertaking for the LEP to manage many smaller loans, although this was 
being explored for the future.

4.8 A member noted that if interest rates were changing, would this erode the 
value of the fund overtime, and questioned whether there were future plans 
to add some interest rate loans to the process. It was advised that the LEP 
had been making a strong pitch to Government on how well this loan was 
working for Gloucestershire and the necessity to increase funding in the next 
round of funding. It was stated that there were no plan to start charging 
interest except for when projects defaulted (payback periods were slower 
than predicted), and therefore after a period of time were charged interest. 

4. STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

4.1 Mike Dawson (CEO) and Cllr Sandra Ford from Tewkesbury Borough 
Council were invited to present this item. Members noted the following 
points:

 This report was presented to the GEGJC at their last meeting and was 
for noting and a reference point for this Committee.

 The report provided an update on the status of strategic plans that had 
been progressed by the Gloucestershire authorities and the levels of 
growth that had been identified/planned for each.

 Stroud District Council had commenced a review of their Local Plan, they 
were expecting to have an examination in public sometime this year.

 Tewkesbury/Cheltenham/Gloucester had a Joint Core Strategy (adopted 
in December 2017) and this was currently being reviewed. The 
authorities had also carried out an ‘issues and options’ consultation 
which had unfortunately experienced delays. They had now appointed 
consultants to support the review of the JCS and had a revised timetable 
for completion.

 Forest of Dean had an adopted Strategy, this was currently under review 
and they planned to have a ‘preferred options’ consultation in 
Summer/Autumn 2022.

 Cotswold also had an adopted plan which was under review and they 
were looking at a regulating consultation for early 2022.

 In summary all councils had adopted plans and were all in the review 
stage at different times.

 Page 19 listed a number of plans that GCC were responsible for, 
strategic documents, a list of plans that had been adopted and the 
number of plans that were under review. 

 Key projects:
o The consultation on M5 Junction 10 proposals would expire on 15th 

February 2022. 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

o M5 Junction 9 and A46 - GCC were leading on considering options for 
the new A46 alignment. The council had applied to the DfT for the 
large local major spending to be able to take this forward. A 
consultation was expected in 2022 on options on what the 
realignment could be. 

o A417 Missing Link – This was being taken forward as a development 
consent order application so that application had been submitted to 
the planning inspectorate, which would likely be considered 
sometime this year.

o National planning matters – It was expected that government would 
announce a much less radical reform of the planning system than 
previously thought.

4.2 A member questioned what impact the revised Environment Bill would 
have on future planning. It was advised that the key impact for planning 
authorities was the need to show that all new developments would 
provide a net gain in terms of biodiversity.

4.3 Noting that the majority of the report content referred to major road 
schemes, it was questioned how the planning process would 
change/adapt to changes in the law and public opinion, especially 
around climate change movements and the increased emphasis on 
separating safe cycle paths from existing roads etc.

4.4 In response, it was acknowledged that there were a necessity to look at 
modal shift in terms of future infrastructure and climate change, but it 
would also remain important for people to have a choice. All district 
councils would continue working with GCC, as the lead highway 
authority, in connection with what plans the council had adopted. 

4.4 It was added that GCC commented on all planning applications (apart 
from extremely minor ones) and ensured that the district councils (as the 
local planning authority) were fully aware of the County’s requirements in 
term of future infrastructure. In addition, it also commented on all 
emerging local plans and were a partner of the JCS. The list in the report 
was lengthy but incorporated all aspects that GCC had statutorily 
responsibility for such as, highways and transport, schools, libraries, 
flood elevation, broadband, waste etc. There was an annual requirement 
to produce an Infrastructure Funding Statement and this was produced 
by the end of December each year, the most recent statement is 
available here: Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) - Gloucestershire 
County Council

 
4.5 It was noted that the issue of ‘affordable housing’ not being affordable or 

available for local residents was an issue across the county and 
especially for first-time buyers. It was advised that planning authorities 

Page 12

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/infrastructure-funding-statement-ifs/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/infrastructure-funding-statement-ifs/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

could refer to the ‘Housing Needs Survey’ in terms of having the 
evidence base so they can ensure that the balance is there between 
affordable housing units.

5. WORK PLAN 

5.1 The Chair reconfirmed that the two items that had previously been scheduled 
for today’s session had been delayed and would therefore be allocated new 
meeting dates as a priority:

 Youth unemployment
 Economic Impact of Climate Change – to include green jobs  

5.2 The Chair asked members to comment on the proposed list of items in terms 
of which should be prioritised or if members had alternative suggestions:

 The item on Public Transport (to include the impact of driver shortages) 
was requested as a priority, but to expand and include a dialogue with 
bus companies and to explore the extend they were willing to engage 
with GCC on local issues. This may best served as a joint meeting with 
the Environment Scrutiny Committee.

 It was confirmed that the final item on Modern Methods of Construction 
would be a discussion with the private sector developers. The aim would 
then be to pull together a report on all three sessions, which the Chair 
could then present to GEGJC on behalf of the Committee.

 On the Youth Unemployment item, a member suggested getting input 
from local education providers e.g. Cirencester College as well as looking 
at opportunities for cementing opportunities in the workforce as these 
young people leave education.

 It was noted that there was a regular economic dashboard that went to 
GEGJC which provided the latest figures and information in response to 
the Pandemic.

ACTION: Add dashboard to future GEGJC update item for Committee to note

 Members clarified that they would like the item on Economic Impacts of 
Climate Change to include information on what the council was doing to 
support the development of green jobs in low carbon industries across 
Gloucestershire and what the initiatives were within the council, LEP and 
within our further education providers across Gloucestershire to support a 
low carbon future.

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7.1 There was a question on the process of CIL payments. The Executive 
Director  explained that CIL has been implemented in five of the county’s six 
districts. Those with neighbourhood plans immediately assumed 25% of the 

Page 13



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

funds for use in their local neighbourhood. Following this the district would be 
allowed to apply a 5% administration charge which resulted in 30% of the 
CIL money being immediately swallowed up, and already resulted in a much 
reduced level of funds for the county who were responsible for providing 
infrastructure to support the development.

7.2 The Executive Director stated that of the five district councils that had 
implemented CIL in Gloucestershire (the exception being the Forest of Dean) 
only Stroud had given out any CIL funds to GCC since implementation.  As a 
result of this being introduced, the Infrastructure Funding Statement 
previously referred to showed a very worrying trend of reduced monies 
received from developers through Section 106 payments. The Executive 
Director noted  that prior to CIL being introduced, GCC would be receiving 
well in excess of £10m per annum for infrastructure works, year on year this 
had severely depleted.

7.3 The Executive Director stated that consultants have been commissioned 
(jointly funded by the county council and the JCS authorities) to review the 
JCS CIL and see if there is a way to improve this situation, but noted that it 
would need to reach a place where CIL reflected monies that would have 
been received via Section 106 payments or it would continue to be flawed. 
GCC would now have to wait a year for the review to take place. It was 
hoped that now the county were a fully paid partner of the JCS, this would 
help improve the position.

CHAIR

Meeting concluded at 11:59.

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee  

 

 
Report Title: 
 

 
Green jobs and skills 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
31st March 2022 
 

 
Chair: 

 
Cllr Matt Babbage 
 

 
Presenting Officer: 

 
Lisa McCance (interim support at GCC) 
 

 
Purpose of Report: 

A background paper to support officers presenting at 
Scrutiny, it explores the green economy, focusing on green 
jobs and skills and understanding where the potential for 
growth may be in the medium and long-term.  

 
Planned Dates 
 

 
N/A 

 
Background 
documents: 

 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendices 
 
 
 

 
N/A 
 

 
Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To note the contents of this paper. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Background 

This paper seeks to set out the current position regarding work across the county on 

the green economy as well as setting out data to highlight green jobs growth.  

This paper will be given a short introduction at the Scrutiny meeting followed by a 

presentation from Rachel Brain (2030 Strategy Manager at Stroud District Council), 

Julian Atkins (Countywide Climate Change Coordinator) and Simon Pickering 

(Ecotricity); Rachel and Simon also Co-chairing the Energy Sector Business Group 

for Gfirst LEP. It is then proposed that the discussion is focused around two core 

questions: 

• What does Green Economy mean in Gloucestershire?  

• What is our strategic approach to shaping it?  

 

Context 

The county, districts and Gfirst LEP all have a contribution to make to ensuring that 

zero-carbon targets are met in the future. At a central government level, current and 

emerging policy is signalling a more level playing field for all communities and places 

as we emerge from the pandemic. It includes a Ten Point Plan (2020) to build a 

greener economy, with a pledge to create 250,000 new green jobs by 2030 and the 

Net Zero Strategy: Build Back Greener (2021). The government also established a 

Green Jobs Taskforce which was charged with setting the direction for the job 

market as we “transition to a high-skill, low carbon economy” along with green job 

creation and stimulus packages from government. 

At a county-level, the county council, districts, other public sector partners, the Gfirst 

LEP and the Local Nature Partnership have established Climate Leadership 

Gloucestershire. This group feeds into Leadership Gloucestershire to ensure 

priorities and activities are aligned. Contained within the terms of reference is the 

aim to raise the profile and level of action on climate change within the county. This 

will be done through four objectives including: 

1. To develop and own a countywide action plan to tackle the most strategic and 

cross cutting climate change issues for Gloucestershire.  

2. To integrate climate considerations into the plans and strategies developed by 

partners. 

3. To provide a collective voice and leadership on action needed at a national 

level to support local delivery on climate action. 

4. To present visible leadership on climate action for the county, raising 

awareness and promoting action by residents and organisations in 

Gloucestershire.  

 

 

 

Page 16



Across Climate Leadership Gloucestershire, there are 10 themes, with a different 

partner or group of partners leading on each theme.  

Adaptation theme – lead Gloucester City Council 

Transport theme – lead Gloucestershire County Council 

Biodiversity theme – lead Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership 

Retrofit theme – lead Stroud District Council 

Planning theme – lead Cheltenham Borough Council 

Behaviour change theme – lead Police and NHS 

Economy theme – lead G-First LEP 

Energy theme – lead Forest of Dean District Council 

Waste theme – lead Tewksbury District Council 

Food and farming theme – lead Cotswold District Council 

 

Green Jobs in Gloucestershire  
There are multiple approaches to defining the jobs within the green economy, and 

many believe that all jobs in the future will have a green dimension.  

However, there is a country-wide shortage of skills to support the further 

development of the green economy. This is in part as consumer behaviour has not 

yet reached a level of demanding green goods, technologies and service at the scale 

required to reach zero carbon targets.  

As a start point for this discussion, this paper sets out an estimation of the total 

number of low-carbon jobs required and the associated skills demands to support 

the transition to net zero by 2030 and 2050. It follows the methodology created by 

the Local Government Association’s work on the Low Carbon Renewable Energy 

Economy (LCREE) and maps it across Standard industrial classification of economic 

activities codes (SIC). 

The data should be considered an indicator of where efforts to support the green 

economy should focus alongside the local intelligence and industry experts.  

What is the data telling us? 

The LGA research concluded that 694,000 direct jobs will be created in the LCREE 

by 2030 in England, rising to 1.18m by 2050.1 This dataset has been used to 

consider growth in the green economy in Gloucestershire. 

Fig1 below shows the number of Low Carbon Renewable Energy Economy 

(LCREE) jobs projected to be in Gloucestershire by sector in 2030 and 2050, and the 

percentage change between the 2 years. Gloucestershire is projected to have 

12,584 LCREE jobs by 2030 and is expected to rise by 61% to 20,263 LCREE jobs 

by 2050. The increase in Gloucestershire is projected to be lower than the regional 

(69%) and national (70%) figures for the same time period.  

Also from the graph, it is evident that the top primary LCREE employment generating 

sector for Gloucestershire is the Low-carbon electricity sector. This sector is 

projected to account for more than half of all LCREE jobs in the county, 55% of all 

 
1 Local green jobs - accelerating a sustainable economic recovery | LG Inform 

Page 17

https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/estimated-total-number-of-direct-jobs-in-low-carbon-and-renewable-energy-sector?mod-area=E09000006&mod-group=AllBoroughInRegion_London&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup


LCREE jobs in 2030 and 56% in 2050. Jobs in this sector are expected to rise 64% 

from 6,901 jobs in 2030 to 11,335 jobs in 2050. The largest percentage rise is 

expected in the Low-carbon services sector between the 2 years, by 181%, with 

LCREE jobs in this sector expected to rise from 521 jobs in 2030 to 1,465 jobs in 

2050. However, this sector accounts for only a small proportion of total LCREE jobs 

in the county, 4% in 2030 and 7% in 2050.     

Fig1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fig2 displays the number of estimated LCREE jobs by sector in 2030 and 2050 for 

Gloucestershire, the South West region, and England. The LGA data suggests that 

Gloucestershire will have a higher proportion of green jobs in the Low-carbon 

electricity sector compared to the South West region and England. In contrast, 

projected jobs in the Low-carbon services and Low emission vehicles sectors are 

expected to make up a larger proportion of total LCREE jobs regionally and 

nationally in comparison to the county.  

64%

90%

50%

5%

69%

181%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

160%

180%

200%

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Low-carbon
electricity

Low emission
vehicles &

infrastructure

Low-carbon heat Energy Efficiency Alternative fuels Low-carbon
services

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 c
h

an
ge

 (
%

) 

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
LC

R
EE

 jo
b

s

Sector

LCREE Jobs by Sector in Gloucestershire, 2030 and 2050

2030 2050 % change between 2030 and 2050

Page 18



Fig2

 

Fig3 shows LCREE job projections by district in Gloucestershire. Looking at LCREE 

projections by districts shows some areas within the county are expected to have 

more green jobs than others in the future. Gloucester is anticipated to have the 

highest number of LCREE jobs within the county across both years, accounting for 

45% of total LCREE jobs across the county in 2030 and 44% in 2050. All districts are 

projected to see their number of LCREE jobs rise by at least 50% between 2030 and 

2050, with Tewkesbury expected to see the largest rise of 83% and Cotswold the 

lowest at 54%.   

Fig3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2030 2050 2030 2050 2030 2050

Gloucestershire South West England

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

LC
R

EE
 jo

b
s 

(%
)

Location

Percentage breakdown of LCREE jobs by sector comparison across Gloucestershire, 
region and country, 2030 and 2050

Low emission vehicles & infrastructure

Low-carbon services

Energy Efficiency

Alternative fuels

Low-carbon heat

Low-carbon electricity

64%

54% 56% 57%

64%

83%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Cheltenham Cotswold Forest of Dean Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 c
h

an
ge

 (
%

)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
LC

R
EE

 jo
b

s

District

LCREE Jobs by District, 2030 and 2050 

2030 2050 % change between 2030 and 2050

Page 19



Fig4 shows LCREE jobs in Gloucestershire and its geographical neighbours. 

Gloucestershire is projected to have the highest number of jobs in 2030 and 2050 in 

comparison with its neighbours, with Oxfordshire and Bristol having the next highest 

number of LCREE jobs amongst the comparison group. However, other areas are 

projected to see larger increases in their number of LCREE jobs between 2030 and 

2050, with Gloucestershire’s projected increase of 61% only higher than those of 

Herefordshire (53%) and Worcestershire (59%).       

Fig4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

53%

72%

87%

59%

75%

90%

70%

87%

61%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

P
er

ce
n

t 
ch

an
ge

 (
%

)

LC
R

EE
 jo

b
s

Local Authority 

LCREE Jobs in Gloucestershire and comparator areas, 2030 and 2050

2030 2050 % change between 2030 and 2050

Page 20



                       Fig5 

Using LCREE estimates for 

2018, and assuming that 

green jobs by Standard 

industrial classification of 

economic activities codes 

(SIC) are spread 

proportionally around the 

country – it is evident that 

approximately 12% of jobs 

in the Electricity, gas and 

air conditioning sub-sectors 

in Gloucestershire are 

green.2 The construction 

sector has the second 

highest proportion of green 

jobs, with just under six per 

cent (5.7%) being low 

carbon and renewable energy jobs. Manufacturing has the third highest with 3.3%. 

However, the manufacturing sector is the largest green employment sector in 

Gloucestershire with 1,144 green jobs followed by Construction (969) and the 

Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning sector (291).  

 

 

 
2 Nomis - Official Labour Market Statistics (nomisweb.co.uk) 

290.8

968.8

1143.9

33.8 195 42.1 1.2 53.6 22 32.7 3 3 1.9 2.7
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

gr
ee

n
 jo

b
s 

(%
)

Sector

Proportion of Green Jobs by Sector in Gloucestershire

Page 21

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/default.asp


This page is intentionally left blank



Youth Unemployment in Gloucestershire

March 2022

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



Overview
• Leadership, co-ordination and delivery - The slides are GFirst LEP slides but 

the work is led and co-ordinated by GCC and delivered by GCC, the 
Employment & Skills Hub, GFirst LEP and a range of local partner 
organisations

• Youth unemployment in Gloucestershire – what the latest data is telling us, 
impacts of the Covid pandemic

• Main challenges for young people who are unemployed – an overview plus 
the experiences of two young people we are working with

• Support/programmes available – a summary of the provision

• Improvements we would like to see and links to Child-Friendly 
Gloucestershire’s agenda that we would like the Economic Scrutiny 
Committee to endorse

P
age 24



Key messages from youth unemployment data 
in Gloucestershire 

Recovery from Covid pandemic - The claimant count for 16-24 year olds 

peaked in August 2020, and has more than halved since then.

District recovery: Fastest = Forest of Dean; Slowest = Gloucester City

Comparison with SW and UK: slightly higher rates in Gloucestershire but 
trends v similar

Should we be focusing our efforts on older residents? - 25-34 and 35-44 
year old age groups were the slowest to return to pre-pandemic levels

NEET rates in Gloucestershire rose slightly during the pandemic, but have 
now returned to pre-pandemic levels

P
age 25



Claimant count:16-24 year olds
Gloucestershire trend compared with United Kingdom

Source: Office for National Statistics

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

16
-2

4 
yr

 o
ld

 c
la

im
an

ts
 (U

K
)

16
-2

4 
yr

 o
ld

 c
la

im
an

ts
 (G

lo
u

ce
st

er
sh

ir
e)

16-24 year old claimants by month:
Gloucestershire & United Kingdom

Gloucestershire United Kingdom

P
age 26



Claimant count:16-24 year olds
Annual snapshots by district (February 2019-2022)

Source: Office for National Statistics

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1,000

Cheltenham Cotswold Forest of Dean Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury

N
um

be
r 

of
 1

6
-2

4 
yr

 o
ld

 c
la

im
an

ts

District

16-24 year old claimants by district
snapshot as at February: 2019-2022 

February 2019 February 2020 February 2021 February 2022

P
age 27



16-24 year old claimants as a % of all adult claimants
Gloucestershire, South West Region & United Kingdom

Source: Office for National Statistics

15%

16%

17%

18%

19%

20%

21%

1
6-

24
 y

r 
ol

ds
 a

s 
%

 o
f 

al
l a

du
lt

 c
la

im
an

ts

16-24 yr old claimants as % of
all adult claimants (16+):

Gloucestershire, South West & United Kingdom

Gloucestershire South West United Kingdom

P
age 28



Claimant rate by age band
Gloucestershire

Source: Office for National Statistics

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

R
a

te

Claimant Rate by Age Band:
Gloucestershire

Aged 16-24 Aged 25-34 Aged 35-44 Aged 45-54 Aged 55-64

P
age 29



Claimant rate: 16-24 year olds
Gloucestershire, South West Region & United Kingdom

Source: Office for National Statistics

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

7%

8%

R
at

e

16-24 yr old claimant rate:
Gloucestershire, South West & United Kingdom

Gloucestershire South West United Kingdom

P
age 30



Percentage of 16-18 yr olds who are NEET
Gloucestershire (adjusted)

Source: Gloucestershire Youth Support Team

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

%
 N

EE
T

% NEET (16-18 yr olds):
Gloucestershire (Adjusted)

Gloucestershire (Adjusted) 16-18's

P
age 31



Percentage of young people who are NEET
Gloucestershire (adjusted)

Source: Gloucestershire Youth Support Team

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

%
 N

EE
T

% NEET: Gloucestershire

Gloucestershire (Adjusted) 16-18's Gloucestershire Y12-13

P
age 32



Main challenges for young people who are 
unemployed

Anxiety and lack of confidence - impacts on going out, meeting new 
people, sleeping, relationships, asking for help, physical health, seeking 
work

Princes Trust CEO: “Thousands of young people feel like prisoners in 
their own homes.”

Social isolation – on top of the experience of the Covid pandemic

Wider mental health impacts – particularly depression, self-harm

Financial pressures – with cost of living rising significantly, with peers

P
age 33



Young people’s experiences of unemployment

The most important aspect of today’s session is for you to hear directly 
from two young people we are working with about their experience of 
unemployment.P

age 34



Support/programmes available (1.)

These are focused on:

Getting the transitions from school to colleges and alternative provision right for 

each young person so they can continue their learning and career pathways with 

the support they need. In particular, the Yr 11 Transition Panels and Transition chat 

programmes managed by GCC are focused on this.

Identifying, understanding and meeting young people’s support needs then 

providing tailored, individualised ‘wraparound’ support either directly or via 

delivery partners

Maintaining contact and support so that when young people ‘wobble’ they don’t 

‘fall’ and don’t feel they are facing challenges alone

P
age 35



Support/programmes available (2.)

Employment support - via The ‘Work it Out’ project delivered by Youth Support Team (YST) 
and funded by Shaw Trust, ESF-funded NEET programme delivered by Prospects Training 
Services (PTS), Works For Me programme GCC’s in house post-16 education offer for those 
with additional challenges

Careers support – predominantly through the Youth Support Team (YST), schools and colleges 
in the Careers Hub, the GCC Employment & Skills Hub and the National Careers Service

Employer engagement and links including work tasters, experience, in work support including 
mental health and other support via the DWP Access to Work Scheme for those with 
disabilities

Reducing isolation and increase community engagement - Linked Up Plus delivered by Young 
Gloucestershire

Mentoring – both peer and adult

P
age 36



Support/programmes available (3.)

Skills development –English, maths, other short courses to help gain jobs, 
progression into apprenticeships, traineeships, and (up until recently) 
Kickstart

Help with other issues – benefit advice, budgeting, finances, rent, 
transport, etc.

Targeted help for most vulnerable young people e.g. care leavers – free 
bus travel, rent, apprenticeship wage ‘top up’ payments, digital access, 
driving lessons, higher education accommodation and bursaries, Step 
Forwards initiative, Lumbs and Rees Foundations, etc.; AIM Supported 
Internships for those with Education & Health Care Plans (EHCPs) 

P
age 37



Further developments we are working on and which 
require your support

More transparent and better shared and understood data – there are multiple partners 
supporting young people in the County and we need everyone involved to have ‘one 
version of the truth’ and share data and intelligence effectively

Review of existing provision to get better collaboration and join-up between existing 
contracts/programmes e.g. need to resolve tensions between the YST/Shaw Trust contract, 
the ESF-funded NEET programme run by Prospect Training Services, and other provision

Prevention of NEET programme with support for those with the most complex needs

Improvements to work experience and careers support, especially for young people who 
do not have family support. The pilot of the Gloucestershire Employment Charter will 
report in May 2022 and will require resources to scale up.

The Going the Extra Mile (GEM) project has been very successful in providing support for 
those furthest from the labour market and most in need of support, including young 
people. It is also an excellent model of VCSE and public sector combined working but its 
European Social Fund (ESF) and Lottery funding is ending soon….and before the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund comes in to replace ESF.

P
age 38



Youth unemployment and support are broad 
topics and we will be taking this forward with 
the Child-Friendly Gloucestershire Coalition.

Does the Committee have any specific aspects we haven’t 
covered or that you think need a further ‘deep dive’ into in a 
future meeting?

P
age 39



Q & A and follow-ups to this meeting

Any follow-up questions, please contact:

Pete Carr (GFirst LEP) Peter.carr@gfirstlep.com

Sarah Poultney (GCC) sarah.poultney@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Vikki Walters (GCC) vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk

P
age 40

mailto:Peter.carr@gfirstlep.com
mailto:sarah.poultney@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:vikki.walters@gloucestershire.gov.uk


GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2022

31 March 2022 31 May 2022

Economic impacts of climate change
to include green jobs

Youth unemployment

Modern Methods of Construction 
Developers

LEP item: 

21 July 2022 22 September 2022 29 November 2022

LEP item: LEP item: LEP item: 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 7



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Statement of Common Ground / City Region 
Board

4 Independent Retail Sector

2 Impact of potential future lockdowns or 
pandemics on the economy (WFH impacts)

5 The impacts of Covid on the Tourism and 
Hospitality sector

3 Food and Farming Strategy 6 Public transport – to include the impact of 
driver shortages 

Potential joint 
meeting with 
Environment 

P
age 42



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

February 2022

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, including 
updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 Continuation of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee until 31 March 2023 

Between 15 Feb 2022 and 2 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Economy, Education and 
Skills

 The procurement of highway services and construction phase works in connection with the 
delivery of Tintern Bridge Refurbishment Scheme Between 18 Jan 2022 and 10 Mar 2022 
by Cabinet Member - Highways and Flood

 Parking ICT Contracts Between 15 Feb 2022 and 15 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Public 
Protection, Parking and Libraries

 Gloucestershire County Council’s partnership agreement with Gloucester City Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council in relation to the Joint 
Core Strategy Between 3 Aug 2020 and 18 Mar 2022 by Cabinet Member - Environment 
and Planning

 Gloucester City Agency Agreement Between 28 Feb 2022 and 21 Mar 2022 by Cabinet 
Member - Highways and Flood

 Concessionary bus passes and School bus passes; production, management and 
analytics, and Concessionary re-imbursement 30 Mar 2022 by Cabinet

 Bus Back Better - The Enhanced Partnership 30 Mar 2022 by Cabinet
 Draft Road Safety Policy Consultation Between 20 Apr 2022 and 29 Apr 2022 by Cabinet 

Member - Public Protection, Parking and Libraries
 Gloucestershire Statement of Common Ground - Strategic Planning 22 Jun 2022 by 

Cabinet

Pending items for publication  
 M5 Junction 9 
 Community and Adult Skills Programme 
 Library Strategy 
 Stroud Library 

2.0 Highways 

M5 J10
 Non-statutory public consultation results now published.  Preferred Route 

Announcement took place on 16th June 2021 along with associated communications 
and publication via GCC website.

 Land agents progressing land acquisition/negotiations in partnership with GCC 
Property.

Page 43

Agenda Item 8

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44161&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43421&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43421&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44162&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43790&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44311&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44311&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=43789&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=44090&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=40377&Opt=0


 Successful bid for £35k Capacity Funding from Homes England to support local 
planning authorities in both their statutory and non-statutory functions in respect of the 
Development Consent Order process.

 Claims to date total just over £15m.
 Consultation for A38/A4019 Coombe Hill package of works have concluded and findings 

are being fed into next stage of design.
 Statutory Public Consultation is currently underway – runs from 8th December 2021 to 

15th February 2022.  The feedback received will be considered after this period to inform 
the design and the Development Consent Order process.  The consultation report will 
be published.

West Cheltenham Transport Infrastructure Scheme / Cyber
 Work started on site for Phases 1 and 2 in June 2020 and has been substantially 

completed with traffic management now fully removed and new traffic signals expected 
to be commissioned imminently.  The Phase 3 and 4 Design and Build contract started 
in January 2021 and is on programme to be completed in Spring 2022.

 National Highways’ safety critical works at Staverton Bridge and M5 Junction 11 are 
underway with Arle Court forming part of the M5J11 diversion route – with Phase 1 
and 2 works virtually complete this is no longer causing a major impact.

Gloucester SW Bypass / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission granted April 2019;
 Public Inquiry decision announced in early April by the DfT for the CPO process – this 

is subject to a 6 week Judicial Review Period and a Notice of Intent Period which 
extends until Autumn 2021.

 All premises are now owned by GCC.  Work is underway to complete all utility 
disconnections.

 Planning application for change of use (part of City Business Centre to become car 
park for displaced parking) has now been approved

 Scheme now includes segregated footway and cycleway facilities that are compliant 
with latest government design guidance from the DfT.

 Preferred contractor in place for City Business Centre demolition contract, with 
surveys, accommodation works and demolition scheduled to start early in 2022

 Levelling Up Fund bid successful at £12.822m allowing the main highway works to 
start in Summer 2022 following some unavoidable delays to the demolition schedule.

 Funding questionnaire now submitted.

Gloucester Station Access Works (Delivery with Gloucester City Council)
 New access/egress at Metz Way now complete.  Revised Bruton Way access works 

including additional drainage works will commence in Spring 2022.

Structures/Geotechnical Schemes
 Blakeney West – Detailed design complete and contract out to tender.  Market 

engagement event at end October.  Contract award in December with mobilisation in 
January 2022 with construction works planned for February 2022 with likely completion 
in Summer 2022.

 Rushmire Hill – investigation works ongoing to determine slip and failure mechanism to 
inform design.

 Badgeworth Road – design works underway during 2021/22

Page 44



 Tintern Bridge – design works underway and accelerated construction programme 
being prepared.  Ongoing co-ordination with Monmouthshire CC who jointly have 
responsibility for the bridge. 

 Walk Bridge – tendering Design and Build contract for Stroud District Council.  
Preliminary early contractor involvement to investigate possible construction potions 
prior to tender process.

Ashchurch Bridge over Rail (Delivery for Tewkesbury Borough Council)
     Planning permission for the bridge has been granted. Detailed design continues 

(Atkins).
     Legal agreement is underway.  Ground investigation completed.
 Project delivery through Design and Build contract likely.
 Works continue with Tewkesbury Borough Council and Network Rail to understand the 

complexities of the legal agreements required for the construction phase.
 Embankment and haul road construction works estimated for Summer 2022.

A435 Junction Improvements
 Works are underway to deliver capacity improvements associated with local housing 

developments with highway works due to complete by March 2022.  The project will 
also provide some enabling works for future cycle route between Cheltenham and 
Bishops Cleeve.

A435 Cheltenham to Bishops Cleeve Cycleway
 Preliminary design work is now progressing of the cycle route following an initial 

concept design. 

A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse)
 Works substantially complete.   Alterations planned at Horsetrough Roundabout to 

improve cycling provision planned for mid 2022. 

Highways Contracts
 Term maintenance (Ringway) – Third year of the contract is almost complete and we 

are looking forward to Year 4 of the contract.  Performance on cyclical maintenance and 
defect repair remains on target.  Defect numbers for Q3 were just under 10,000 but we 
are seeing figures start to increase as the weather is impacting our network.  Parts of 
the network which have not yet been addressed with long term solutions such as 
resurfacing remain fragile.  We are in the middle of our winter maintenance operations – 
at mid-February the total number of runs continues above profile, this is mainly due to 
the prolonged period where road temperatures have fallen below zero each night and 
for extended periods resulting in a number of double runs.  Further commercial 
discussions underway to address retention/recruitment challenges in construction 
sector.

 Professional services (Atkins) – Third year of contract underway.  
 Structural maintenance (Tarmac) – Last year of current contract.  Continued good 

performance and final year of £150m investment underway.  
 Tarmac successful for new Maintenance Contract starting April 2022 2+2 year contract.
 Street lighting (M Group) –Performance on key indicators remains satisfactory.  
 Highway Skills Academy – Current focus continues on the formation of a 

development/career path for those staff which are progressing through their 
apprenticeships in order that GCC retains the investment in time, funds and skills.  Our 
first cohort of Level 4 (HNC equivalent) Apprenticeships of 11 staff have started with a 
second cohort planned to follow next year with the high level of interest from existing 

Page 45



staff.  Highways have also welcomed some participants from the Kickstart programme 
into the teams.

Highways Delivery
 Depots/property – development of strategic plan for highways depots included in 21/22 

Service Plan in order to ensure facilities are fit for purpose.
 Ash die back – continued programme in 21/22 including planting programme to ensure 

that two trees are planted for each one felled with ash die back disease.  Discussions 
are underway with external organisations such as National Trust and others to identify 
larger woodland planting schemes off the public highway.  Programme for 22/23 being 
planned.

3.0 Community & Infrastructure 

Definitive Map Modification Order (DMMO) Update:

The required upgrade to the DMMO Register is due to go live in March 2022.

Total number of ‘unresolved’ applications: 180 (static from Dec-
21)

No. of new ‘min.14(1) compliant’ applications received in 
2021 (full year)

21 (none yet in 2022)

Number of applications ‘resolved’ in 2021 (full year) 10 (none yet in 2022)
Number of routes added to DM&S by ‘other means’ in 2021 
(full year)

3 (+ 1 so far in 2022)

Currently resolving, on average over the past 5 years, 7.2 applications a year 

Number of all ‘undetermined’ applications: 
Undetermined Undet-Archived Undet-Non14(2)

No. 28 52 63
(“Archived” applications are whereby the intended effect of the application is essentially nulled by a 
subsequent change in legislation (for example, the NERC Act); “Non14(2)” applications have not been ‘fully 
made’ but are still valid applications in terms of needing determination.) 

Number of all unresolved ‘determined’ applications: 
Apps with unresolved objectionsApps at publication/ 

confirmation stage Submitted to SoS Awaiting submission 
No. 5 0 32

Recent CROWC determinations:
Last CROW Committee 1 App on 5 Oct - decision to make Order for additional FP

1 App on 2 Dec - decision to make Order for additional FP
Next CROW Committee In March 2022 - Application re: Mill Farm, Greet

DfT Emergency Active Travel Fund 
 Tranche 1: Works to extend the continuous cycle lanes on London Road, up to its 

junction with Great Western Road, were substantially completed in December. Signage 

Page 46



is being erected to enable enforcement of parking and loading restrictions and coloured 
surfacing will be applied later in March when weather conditions are suitable. Public 
consultation took place on making permanent a number of associated traffic regulation 
orders and these are being implemented with some minor amendments.

 Tranche 2: Works are underway to build an LTN 1/20 (Department for Transport cycle 
design standards) compliant cycle route along the B4063, starting with the section 
between the M5 overbridge and Pheasant Lane. When these are complete, in early 
Spring, works will commence on the adjacent section to Arle Court.

ITU Public Transport and School Transport
 In October Cabinet agreed the council’s Bus Service Improvement Plan to support the 

economic recovery and measures to tackle climate change and social exclusion in rural 
areas. Our bid will enable the council to bid for significant government funds to deliver 
high quality urban and rural public transport services over the next three years. A follow 
up report will be considered by Cabinet in March to note progress to date on developing 
the Gloucestershire Bus Enhanced Partnership (EP) document.

 Following the decision by Stagecoach to withdraw service 132 and to make significant 
reductions to service 32 officers from the Integrated Transport Unit have been working 
with local communities and engaging transport operators to provide personalised travel 
planning advice and alternative transport to mitigate the impact on users. Passenger 
levels which were low prior to Covid have fallen since making a like for like replacement 
bus service subsidised by the county council an unviable option due to the high subsidy 
cost per passenger trip, over double the maximum level.

Network Management (Road Safety and Parking)
 In December a workshop on road safety policy, targets and the use of lower speed 

limits was held with stakeholders including district, parish and town councils, the police, 
fire service and external speakers. Feedback from this is being used to inform 
development of a new road safety policy and targets which will be subject to public 
consultation in the first half of 2022. As part of its 2022/23 budget Council agreed a 
further £550k investment in community and other road safety measures. Recruitment of 
a new Road Safety Team Leader took place in December and a new post holder joined 
us in late February to take this agenda forward.

 Following a competitive procurement process between October and December 2021 
officers have completed evaluating bids for selecting a provider to instal and operate 
Electric Vehicle Charge Points across Gloucestershire. A decision on the preferred 
bidder has now been taken and further details will be released shortly. This is a key 
milestone in enabling the council to deliver its plans for 1000 EVCP’s over the next four 
years. 

Sustainability
 The council has secured £1m towards delivery of its 1 million trees target, including 

£600,000 of external grants from the Woodland Trust and Forestry Commission. In 
January it appointed a Tree Officer who is taking forward plans that will see over 60,000 
trees planted in the county by the end of the current planting season. A further £1m per 
annum in the base budget was agreed by Council in February to tackle the Climate 
Emergency.

 As part of our Greener Fleet work an order has been placed for 7 ultra low emission 
vehicles for the Edge of Care team. The 6 Nissan Leafs and 1 Hyundai Ioniq will be on 
a four-year lease. During this period they will save around 45 tonnes of CO2 compared 
with the vehicles they replace, helping us achieve our climate change targets. The team 

Page 47



is excited to receive the new vehicles, which are not only greener but are also safer 
than their current vehicles. With support from AMPS, the cars will be based in Quayside 
Car Park where we are installing designated EV chargers.

Highways Development Management
 As part of the HDM Improvement Plan discussions are underway with HR to identify 

ways of recruit to some hard to fill posts where there is strong competition for skilled 
staff from private sector housebuilders and contractors. 

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure

B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
     The original HE scheme, in order to fulfil funding criteria, needed to be completed by 

March 2020. This, however, was subsequently extended to construction starting in 
2021, as part of the RIS2 process. GCC officers continue to engage with HE’s Route 
Manager to attempt to ensure everything is ‘joined up’. 

     GCC has decided to take over the detailed design of this project, with the design fully 
underway with the East part of the route designed and consulted upon in Spring 2021, 
an independent audit has now been completed by a leading industry expert to ensure 
we provide the best possible facility we can within the constraints.  The audit findings 
have led to extensive enhancement of the provision, which have been heavily endorsed 
by Sustrans to the extent that they are due to become a major funding provider for the 
scheme.  The revised proposals for the East part of the route between the M5 
overbridge and Arle Court have now been published on the County Council’s website 
reflecting the feedback received to date.

     Works started in October 2021, delivering the east part of the route first between the M5 
and Pheasant Lane which is expected to be completed in Spring 2022 and will be 
directly followed by subsequent phases with the next section between Pheasant Lane 
and Arle Court.

     This scheme will have the key advantage of directly linking the project to the emerging 
£22M West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) providing a 
continuous link between Gloucester and Cheltenham rail station once complete and 
include the recently successfully delivered Emergency Active Travel Scheme on London 
Road in Gloucester. The GFirst LEP Board, in December 2020, agreed that any future 
underspend on the £22M WCTIS would be ringfenced to the B4063 cycle scheme. Prior 
to this, in November 2020, £864k was secured from an EATF Tranche 2 bid from the 
Department for Transport (DfT), which will part fund a section of the works.  

     The County Council has recently successfully secured DfT Levelling Up funding to 
extend the route through Gloucester City Centre and Gloucester Docks providing 
linkage to the Gloucester Canal Towpath.  

M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme was submitted to the 

DfT in January 2020;
 Positive Government announcement in March 2020, stating that the scheme should 

progress to the next stage;
 This is to progress to the Outline Business Case – the cost of which is likely to be £2M-

£3M – part of the funding came from the approved £4M GCC funding for ‘business case 
development’ in 2020/21;

Page 48



 The progression of the scheme was considered and approved by GCC Cabinet on 24th 
March 2021; 

 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and 
Tewkesbury BC due to the links to the emerging ‘garden town’;

 Ongoing discussions with HE to secure approval of options for Junction 9;
 Detailed HE feedback has been received and is currently being analysed by officers and 

Atkins. 
 Baroness Vere has confirmed support for the project in November 2021.
 Cabinet report (re- future expenditure on M5 J9 / A46) programmed for June 2022.
 Non statutory public consultation anticipated in September 2022.

Fastershire
 Removal of premises from stage 3 Gigaclear contracts - Following the approval of 

the GCC ICM report in December 2021, Gigaclear have been contacted and informed of 
the decision.  The Fastershire Team are in discussion with BDUK regarding the 
inclusion of those premises as part of the next phase of the Project Gigabit programme.  
Project Gigabit aims to increase access to gigabit capable broadband to 85% of UK 
properties by the end of 2025 by funding the rollout in areas that are not being reached 
through private sector investment.

 Review of the potential for a new Fastershire Community Offer in Gloucestershire 
- The purpose of this review is to understand what additional mitigation support/offer 
could be provided to those premises directly impacted by the removal (de-scope) from 
the stage 3 Gigaclear contracts  (such as those premises being moved to Project 
Gigabit).  The review should conclude by the end of March 2022.

A417 Missing Link
 Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) made March 2019;
 Further public consultation took place in Autumn 2019;
 A supportive officer-level response to this consultation (a joint response from CDC, TBC 

and GCC) was sent on 8th November 2019;
 Positive announcement in March 2020 stating that the scheme has secured funding and 

should progress to DCO;
 Revised proposals were subject to a further public consultation, which started on 12th 

October 2020. A detailed GCC officer response was sent, meeting the external deadline 
of 12th November 2020;

 The DCO planning application was submitted in June 2021 and a Public Examination is 
currently being held by the Planning Inspectorate;

 An Individual Cabinet Member decision in December 2021 has authorised the formal 
delegation to officers the authority to represent the Council through the DCO process.

Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 The LTP was adopted at Full Council on 17th March 2021.

Chepstow Transport Improvements
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options;
 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress to Full Business Cases;
 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K (2020/21) 

towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study;
 A further GCC financial contribution of £30K for 2021/22 has been made to 

Monmouthshire CC;
 Meeting with relevant MPs held on 28th January 2022. 

Page 49



Cinderford 
 FoDDC yet to secure planning permission and funding for proposed extension of phase 

one of the road;
 A Section 73 amendment to vary the existing planning permission was submitted in 

April 2021 and is awaiting determination by FoDDC;
 FoDDC held a Cinderford Northern Quarter Scrutiny Inquiry in November 2021, with 

GCC senior officer input;
 Until planning and funding for the road is in place, no further action for GCC. 

Local Plans / JCS / CIL
 Review of JCS now underway following an ‘Issues and Options’ consultation which 

ended in January 2019;
 The JCS Reg.18 public consultation has now been delayed to early 2023;
 Progress has been made with the JCS authorities to review the JCS CIL – consultants 

are now undertaking this task in liaison with GCC officers;
 GCC education and library contributions continue to be challenged and declined by 

some District Councils and developers – these are in the process of being reviewed by 
GCC;

 GCC continues to not receive a penny of CIL from any of the JCS authorities;
 Stroud Local Plan – Consultation on Draft Local Plan – closed 22nd January 2020. 

Significant officer-level concerns submitted to SDC – especially transport issues re- the 
significant proposed development at Whaddon and Sharpness. Another SDC 
consultation took place with additional possible housing sites, which was responded to 
in December 2020. The most recent public consultation stage (pre-submission draft 
consultation) ended on 21st July 2021. GCC officer comments were submitted prior to 
the deadline. The Plan has now been submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for 
consideration. 

 Cotswold Local Plan – ‘Issues and Options’ consultation currently underway – the 
deadline for comments is 20th March 2022. GCC officers are considering the document. 

 Forest of Dean Local Plan – Issues and Options consultation ended on 31st October 
2019. FoDDC consulted on a ‘preferred option’ – the closing date for comments was 
29th January 2021. GCC officers commented before this deadline. 

5.0 Libraries & Registration

Libraries
 No new update.

Registration 
 Face to face death registration appointments will re-commence on 24th March 2022 

following the cessation of the Coronavirus Act 2020

6.0 Waste Management 

 Following authorisation from Cabinet in December 21, an invitation to tender for the 
contract for the sale of electricity generated by the Gloucestershire Energy from Waste 
facility at Javelin Park was issued earlier this month. The deadline for submitting an 
outline proposal is 8th March. Subject to market interest, two or three companies will 
then be taken forward to the negotiation stage, which will run over the spring/summer. 

Page 50



All energy sales from the Gloucestershire EfW have now been fixed until Oct 23 (the 
end of the existing contract term with our current off-taker, EDF). The aim is to 
commence the new agreement by Sept 22, so that the council can forward sell 
electricity when considered best value to do so.

 Next day appointments are available at each of the five HRC sites. The HRCs were 
closed at 11am on Friday 18th Feb due to storm Eunice. Any missed appointments that 
day were honoured over the following week. Saturday opening at waste transfer 
stations was also arranged to help the district councils catch up on waste collections 
suspended on 18th Feb.

 Tender evaluation for the materials off-take contracts for the various waste streams 
collected for reuse, recycling and recovery at the HRCs has now been completed and a 
delegated officer decision to award contracts has been taken. Contract award letters are 
being issued. The new agreements need to be in place by1st April 2022. 

 A new communications campaign will run through March, encouraging residents to 
repair and reuse. The campaign will promote a number of local voluntary and charitable 
organisations that promote waste reduction, reuse and repair.

 Planning permission has been granted for the retrospective application made by 
Grundon Waste Management for the residual waste transfer service it is undertaking for 
the council. This consent runs until July 22.

7.0 Employment and Skills 

Adult Education Service
 Learning Co-ordinator, Exam Officer and Administrator posts have all now been filled 

with all new starters going through the recruitment processes with a view to have all 
started in post by April 2022.

 New subcontracts have all been issued and all are up and running under the current 
framework.  

 We have recently received our first Hong Kong resettlement learners and will be 
claiming the special funding for these learners on a quarterly basis.

 We have been invited to submit our ROATP application to remain on the apprenticeship 
register, this is due to be submitted at the end of February.  The process is has changed 
this year and is much more complicated than in previous years.  Final read through of 
the application is taking place on 21st February with a view to make our final submission 
on 28th February.  We are confident that we have met all criteria to be registered again.

 Matrix – received this accreditation in January without any issues for improvement.
 Centre computers and learner laptops have now all been upgraded to Windows 10 to 

allow us to deliver the most up to date ICT courses.
 Following the most recent update on Maths, English, ICT and ESOL exam pass rates 

we have achieved over 90% pass rates for all qualifications which is up on the national 
average for each qualification.

 All apprenticeship courses have recently been Externally Verified by Pearson the 
awarding body, all have passed with flying colours.

 All full cost recovery courses including First Aid and Paediatric First Aid have also been 
externally verified by the awarding body and been given very positive feedback with 
Paediatric First Aid being awarded direct claim status on the first visit which does not 
happen very often, we are very pleased with this achievement.

Page 51



Skills and Employment Hub
 The Hub is up and running with a lot of activity to encourage referrals from individuals 

and partner organisations to utilise resource from 1 February
o Already committed partners who will use the Hub to deliver

 DWP Work Coaches
 Case-UK Access to Work mental health support workers
 National Careers Service 

 119 referrals to date from various sources
 Courses running from the Hub including Work Clubs and Kickstart employability 

courses with more development scheduled
 Community Action Plan in development which will eventually become part of the CRM
 Job fairs attended with Hub Job Fairs and Open Days planned for the Spring
 We have started to align some of the common activities of Forwards/GEM and GFirst 

LEP including work with schools/colleges and employer relationships
 Interactions with libraries with a view to delivering outreach in communities – this will 

start in Gloucester and Stroud in February
 During partner visits/presentations the Hub is receiving positive feedback re the idea of 

having one place to go
 We are having conversations with some Districts re major recruitment possibilities eg 

J10 and Kings Square
 “Inclusive employment” and the E & S Skills Hub has a specific section in the Skills 

Strategy and we are involved in the social value conversations

Employment Programmes
 Our employment offer for people who are disadvantaged in the labour market has 

grown considerably and we now offer in addition to our core offer for people with health 
conditions or disabilities;

o Support for NEETs through the Works for Me Programme with cohorts 2 and 3 
planned start dates in March

o Support for Care Leavers through Step Forwards – recruitment in progress
 Both programmes offer us the opportunity to be innovative in the way we meet young 

people’s needs including working with commissioning and DWP to overcome the 
specific barrier of benefits that have stopped some of our Care Leavers from entering 
employment

 All programmes are delivering and achieving outcomes and we have achieved our 
yearly target for Forwards job outcomes

 Recruiting staff is an issue and we are currently carrying several vacancies with very 
few applicants in comparison to pre-pandemic times

The Gloucestershire GEM Project
 Over the next few months we will be putting in place close-down procedures for GEM 

which will include as a priority compliance checking all programme documentation to 
mitigate financial risk to GCC and partners.

 An interim Monitoring and Evaluation Report has now been produced with a final report 
due in the Autumn 2022.

ICS S256 Funding (two year funding)
 This funding has two elements;

o To open up opportunities for young people to work in ICS business areas by 
creating work experience, traineeships, apprenticeships and supported 
internships especially targeting young people who are at risk of long-term 

Page 52



unemployment.  Two apprenticeships will be created with this funding to work on 
rotation in different areas and work with schools and colleges to promote health 
and social care careers to young people in education.  This will link with the 
Proud to Care work and GFirst LEP Careers Hub.

o To address health inequalities for people who are at risk of long-term 
unemployment.  We will introduce two roles – a Mental Health Job Broker and a 
Job Broker supporting people with long term conditions including looking at 
employability under the transforming care agenda.  

 We will also be engaging with the Anchor Institutions agenda as part of this work, and it 
links with other aspects of our inclusive employment provision.

Kickstart
 We can no longer take any new vacancies into our Gateway.  Over the next couple of 

months we will be working with DWP to fill as many of the existing vacancies as 
possible.

 Currently we have seen 140 young people enter onto our opportunities in the Gateway 
and 30 within GCC

 Of those who leave/complete Kickstart in our Gateway 72% have gone into paid 
employment.

 One third of our participants have declared a disability or health condition

GIS Healthcare
 The supported employment element of GIS transferred to us in September.  We are 

currently looking at how the DWP grant can be utilised more effectively to help more 
disabled people into work including looking at external host employers.

- REPORT END - 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 3 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 3 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Economic Growth Scrutiny 3

Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

1

P
age 55



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
 Risk Value Decreasing
 No Change

Measure Symbols
 Performance Better than Target
 Performance Worse than Target
 Performance significantly worse than Target
 No information
 Missing Target
 No Value

Bigger is Better  A bigger value for this measure is good 
Smaller is Better  A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best  Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 56



Economy, Education and Skills

Cllr Philip Robinson

Economic Growth and Planning

Value of Planning Agreements signed to support provision of
Highways & Education/Libraries (£000)

Bigger is Better Year to Date £345 £1,130 £830 £54 £38

Quarters
2021/2022

Number of
agreements

Total Value
Negotiated

Q1 – April –
June

2 £830 k

Q2 – July  Sept 1 £54,k
Q3 – Oct – Dec 2 £37,5 k

n/a

% of premises with next generation broadband access (NGA)
Superfast

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 95.8% 96.3% 96.4% 96.4% 96.5%

We may need to start manging expectations that
there is never going to be 100% coverage as the
industry focus is now on fibre.  This indictor may need
to be reviewed so it reflects where the focus of
industry investment is.

n/a

Total Unemployment Related Benefits Claimants as % of 16 
64 year olds

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 4.5% 4.6% 3.7% 3.3% 2.9%

Gloucestershire's 1664 year old population claiming
an unemployment benefit has continued to reduce,
down to 2.9%.  This equates to 11,295 people in
December.  This is a reduction of almost 7,900
claimants since the peak in August 2020, but remains
higher than the level in March 2020 (7,855, 2%),
continuing to reflect the impact of the pandemic on
businesses and employments.  Gloucestershire's
claimant rate is better than the South West (3.2%)
and England (4.5%)

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Sep21 Actual Dec21 Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 57

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic.version0001
	Minutes


	5 Economic Impacts of Climate Change
	6 Youth unemployment
	7 Work Plan
	8 Executive Director's Report
	Economic Growth Scrutiny Performance and Risk Scorecard Q3 2021-22


